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AN ACT

Prohi biti ng unreasonabl e restraints of trade; inposing
penal ti es; and providing for enforcenent.

The General Assenbly of the Conmonweal th of Pennsyl vani a
her eby enacts as foll ows:
Section 1. Short title.

This act shall be known and may be cited as the Unreasonabl e
Restraint of Trade Law.

Section 2. Declaration of policy.

The General Assenbly finds and declares that the purpose of
this act is to pronote the public benefits of a conpetitive
econoni ¢ environnent and to protect the econom c welfare of
consumners, businesses and the Conmonweal t h.

Section 3. Definitions.

The foll ow ng words and phrases when used in this act shal
have the neanings given to themin this section unless the
context clearly indicates otherw se:

"Attorney General." Includes a designated deputy Attorney
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CGeneral. The termshall not include a private attorney or |aw
firm

"Person.” An individual, partnership, corporation,
association or other entity individually or as a part of an
al l eged class, or through its officers, agents, enployees or
attorneys or those acting in concert with the person. The term
i ncludes a political subdivision.

"Political subdivision.” Includes an agency, a board, a
commi ssion or an authority of a political subdivision.

"Trade secret.” Anything which constitutes, represents,
evi dences or records secret or confidential scientific,
techni cal, merchandi sing, production, managenent or conmerci al
i nformati on.
Section 4. Unreasonable restraints of trade.

A contract, conbination or conspiracy in restraint of trade
or commerce in this Commonweal th is unlawful.
Section 5. Penalties.

(a) Crimnal penalty.--

(1) A partnership, corporation, association or other
entity which violates section 4 conmts a felony of the third
degree and shall, upon conviction, be sentenced to pay a fine
of not nore than $1, 000, 000.

(2) An individual who violates section 4 conmits a
felony of the third degree and shall, upon conviction, be
sentenced to pay a fine of not nore than $100,000 or to
i mprisonnment for not nore than three years, or both.

(b) Enforcenent.--The Attorney Ceneral shall have standing
and authority to prosecute an action for a crimnal penalty.
(c) Alternative civil penalty.--In lieu of crimnal

prosecution under subsection (b), the Attorney General may el ect
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to bring an action for a civil penalty. In an action under this
subsecti on:

(1) An individual who violates section 4 shall be |iable
for a penalty of not nore than $100, 000 for each violation
and for the cost of suit, including a reasonabl e attorney
f ee.

(2) A partnership, corporation, association or other
entity which violates section 4 shall be liable for a penalty
of not nore than $1, 000, 000 for each violation and for the
cost of the suit, including a reasonable attorney fee.

(d) Factors to be considered.--In determning the
appropriate sanctions to be inposed under this section, the
court shall consider at |least the follow ng factors:

(1) The prior crimnal record of the violator

(2) The size and anmount of the contract involved, if
any.

(e) Disposition of fines and penalties.--Crimnal fines and
civil penalties collected under this section shall be paid into
the State Treasury and deposited in the appropriate fund.

(f) Limtation of action.--An action under this section nust
be comrenced within four years after the violation of this act
is conmitted.

(g) Double jeopardy.--A crimnal prosecution or an action
for a civil penalty under this section may not be brought
agai nst a person previously charged by information or indictnent
with a crimnal violation of the act of Cctober 28, 1983
(P.L.176, No.45), known as the Antibid-R gging Act, or of a
Federal antitrust statute if either prosecution is based upon
substantially the same conduct upon which a prosecuti on under

this section could be based and j eopardy has attached under the
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prosecuti on.

(h) Oher actions.--An action under this section does not
bar adm nistrative sanctions, a civil action for injunctive
relief under section 6 or a civil action for damages or
injunctive relief under section 7.

Section 6. Injunctive relief.

(a) Action by Attorney General.--The Attorney General nmay
bring a civil action against any person to restrain the conduct
prohi bited by this act.

(b) Conmencenent of action.--An action under this section
must be comenced within four years after the violation of this
act is conmtted.

Section 7. Private cause of action.

(a) Cause of action.--

(1) A person directly injured in his business or
property as a result of an act prohibited by this act shal
have a right to bring a civil action for damges or
injunctive relief.

(2) The Commonweal th, as a direct purchaser, when
injured in its business or property as a result of an act
prohi bited by this act, shall have the right to bring a civil
action for damages or injunctive relief.

(3) Neither the Commonweal th nor any person may naintain
or continue to maintain a civil action under this act based
on any transactions or occurrences if a final judgnment as to
whi ch all appeal s have been exhausted has been entered in an
action by or on behalf of the Commonwealth or the person
under the antitrust laws of the United States or another
state for injury arising fromthe same transacti ons,

occurrences or circunstances.
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(b) Limtation of action.--A cause of action arises under
this section at the tine the conduct in violation of this act is
di scovered or should have been di scovered or, for a continuing
violation, at the time the latest violation of this act is
di scovered or shoul d have been di scovered. An action under this
section nust be brought within four years of the date when the
cause of action arises. During the pendency of an action under
section 5 and for one year after the action is conpleted, the
l[imtation under this subsection is tolled if the action under
this section is based in whole or in part on any nmatter
conpl ained of in the action under section 5, provided that,
whenever the running of the statute of limtations in respect of
a cause of action arising under this sectionis tolled
her eunder, any action to enforce that cause of action shall be
forever barred unl ess comrenced either within the period of
suspension or within four years after the cause of action
accrued.

(c) Danmges.--I1f the circunstances warrant, danmages
recoverabl e under this act by the Comonweal th may be act ual
damages sustai ned plus the cost of suit, including reasonable
attorney fees. Damages recoverable under this act by persons may
be three tinmes the actual damages sustai ned plus taxable costs
and reasonabl e attorney fees. Damages are subject to the
fol | ow ng:

(1) Neither the Commonweal th nor any person shall be
awar ded any danmages, including treble damages, if a court of
anot her jurisdiction has already entered judgnent on a claim
by the Conmonweal th or the person arising out of the sane
transaction or occurrence.

(2) |If the conduct which gives rise to a violation of
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this act also gives rise to a violation of the act of Cctober

28, 1983 (P.L.176, No.45), known as the Antibid-R gging Act,

t he amobunt awarded as civil danages or conpensati on under

this act shall not duplicate the anmobunt awarded under the

Ant i bi d- Ri ggi ng Act.

(d) Costs in injunction actions.--1n an injunction action in
which the plaintiff substantially prevails, the court shal
award the cost of suit, including a reasonable attorney fee.

(e) Liability.--Liability under this section shall be joint
and several. Persons subject to liability under this act shal
be entitled to contribution in accordance with 42 Pa.C.S. Ch. 83
Subch. B (relating to contribution anong tort-feasors).

(f) Notice to Attorney General.--Wthin ten days of filing a
conpl aint under this section, the plaintiff shall serve a copy
of the conplaint upon the Attorney Ceneral by registered mail. A
copy of the certificate of service shall be filed with the
court.

(g) Collateral estoppel.--A crimnal conviction for a
vi ol ation of section 4 shall be prina facie evidence as to
l[iability of the convicted participants in a civil action under
this section. This subsection does not apply to pleas of no
contest or to consent decrees. Nothing contained in this
subsection shall be construed to inpose a limtation on the
application of collateral estoppel.

(h) Authority of Attorney General.--The Attorney GCeneral
shall have authority under this section:

(1) To bring all actions on behalf of the Commonwealth.
(2) To bring an action as parens patriae on behal f of
i ndi vi dual s who have suffered an injury to their property by

reason of a violation of this act and who resided in this
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Commonweal th when the viol ati on occurred.

(3) To bring an action on behalf of a political

subdi vision, if requested to do so by the political

subdi vi si on.

Section 8. Exenptions.

(a) Sovereign immunity.--The Comopnweal th shall not be
liable in actions under this act. Commonweal th officials and
enpl oyees acting in their official capacities shall not be
liable for penalties under section 5 or for damages, costs and
attorney fees under section 7.

(b) Governnental and official imunity.--Political
subdi vi sions shall not be liable in actions under this act.
Oficials and enpl oyees of political subdivisions acting in
their official capacities shall not be liable for penalties
under section 5 or for damages, costs and attorney fees under
section 7.

(c) State action.--Conduct which results froma clearly
articulated and affirmatively expressed State policy and which
is actively supervised by the Cormonweal th shall not constitute
a violation of this act.

(d) Labor organi zations.--The existence and operation of a
| abor organi zation and the exercise of lawful activities of a
| abor organization shall not constitute a violation of this act.

(e) Cooperative associations.--The collective activities of
an agricultural or a horticultural cooperative association to
process, prepare for market, handl e and mar ket nenbers’
products, whether or not the activities restrain conpetition
anong the nenbers of the association, shall not constitute a
viol ation of this act.

(f) Business of insurance.--This act shall not apply to any
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i nsurance conpany, association or reciprocal, nonprofit hospital
pl an corporation, nonprofit professional health service plan,
heal t h mai nt enance organi zation, fraternal benefits society or
any risk-assum ng preferred provider organization and nonri sk-
assum ng preferred provider organi zati on not governed and
regul ated under the Enpl oyee Retirenment Incone Security Act of
1974 (Public Law 93-406, 88 Stat. 829). Nothing in this act
shal |l be construed to divest the Insurance Conm ssioner of his
exclusive jurisdiction to determ ne what constitutes an unfair
nmet hod of conpetition or an unfair or deceptive act or practice
in the business of insurance under the act of July 22, 1974
(P.L.589, No.205), known as the Unfair |Insurance Practices Act.
(g) Public utilities.-- This act does not apply to
activities of, or to the rates charged by, an electric
cooperative corporation, as defined in 15 Pa.C. S. Ch. 73
(relating to electric cooperative corporations), or a public
utility, as defined in 66 Pa.C.S. 8 102 (relating to
definitions), to the extent that those activities or rates are
subject to the review of the Pennsylvania Public UWility
Commi ssion or a conparabl e Federal agency. Upon the filing of a
conplaint against a public utility pursuant to this act, the
public utility may request fromthe Conmonwealth Court a
decl aratory order outlining the extent to which the activity or
rates subject to the conplaint are subject to the review of the
comm ssion or, if the public utility's conduct or activities are
subject primarily to the jurisdiction of a conparabl e Federal
agency, the public utility nmay request fromthat agency a
decl aratory order outlining the extent to which the activity or
rates subject to the conplaint are subject to the agency's

jurisdiction. This public utility exenption is in addition to
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ot her exenptions granted to public utilities in this act,
i ncl udi ng subsections (c) and (i).

(h) Regulated financial institutions.--This act does not
apply to any institution subject to the Bank Hol di ng Conpany Act
of 1956 (70 Stat. 133, 12 U.S.C. § 1841 et seq.), section 10 of
t he Hone Owmners' Loan Act (48 Stat. 128, 12 U. S.C. § 1467a), the
Bank Merger Act (Public Law 86-463, 74 Stat. 129), the Federal
Deposit Insurance Act (64 Stat. 873, 12 U.S.C. 8§ 1728(b) and
1811 et seq.; 18 U.S.C. 88 215 and 709), the act of Novenber 30,
1965 (P.L.847, No.356), known as the Banking Code of 1965, or
the act of Decenber 14, 1967 (P.L.746, No.345), known as the
Savi ngs Associ ati on Code of 1967.

(1) Federal or State exenpt activities.--Any activity or
conduct authorized by or exenpt from Pennsylvania statutory or
common | aw, or exenpt fromthe provisions of the antitrust |aws
of the United States, shall be exenpt fromthe provisions of
this act. Any activity or conduct subject to any other Federal
statute that limts, nodifies or otherwi se affects the
applicability of one or nore provisions of the Federal antitrust
statutes, or Federal judicial opinions interpreting those
statutes, shall to that extent be exenpt fromthe provisions of
this act.

(j) Not-for-profit health care facilities.--Any agreenment or
conduct by a not-for-profit health care facility which is likely
to reduce health care costs or inprove the quality of patient
care shall not constitute a violation of this act unless the
Department of Health determ nes that such agreenent or conduct
is inconsistent with the State Health Plan of the Commopnweal t h.
The Departnent of Health may, at the request of a health care

facility, issue advisory opinions concerning whether or not a
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speci fic agreenent or conduct is inconsistent with the State
Heal th Pl an of the Commonweal t h.
Section 9. Investigation.

(a) GCeneral power.--1f the Attorney General has probable
cause to believe that a violation of this act has occurred, the
Attorney Ceneral shall have authority to investigate on behalf
of the Commonwealth, its citizens or a political subdivision.

(b) Attendance and production of docunents.--Prior to the
institution of a civil action, the Attorney General is
authorized to require the attendance and testinony of w tnesses
and the production of docunents. For this purpose, the Attorney
CGeneral may issue subpoenas, exam ne wi tnesses and receive
evidence. If a person objects to or otherwise fails to conply
wi th a subpoena or request for testinony, the Attorney Ceneral
may file in Comonwealth Court an action to enforce the subpoena
or request. The Attorney General shall have the burden to prove
t hat probabl e cause exists. Notice of hearing the action and a
copy of all pleadings shall be served upon the person, who may
appear in opposition.

(c) Confidentiality.--

(1) Any testinony taken or material produced shall be
kept confidential by the Attorney Ceneral except to the
extent he may use information in a judicial proceeding or if
the disclosure is authorized by the court for good cause
shown or confidentiality is waived by the person being
i nvestigated and by the person who has testified, answered
interrogatories or produced material s.

(2) At the Attorney Ceneral's discretion, the Attorney
CGeneral may disclose information di scovered under this

section to the United States Departnent of Justice, the
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Federal Trade Comm ssion, another state or territory of the

United States, the District of Colunbia and anot her agency of

t he Commonweal th, upon the prior certification of an

appropriate official of the recipient that the informtion

will be maintained in confidence other than use for official
pur poses and that the recipient will abide by the provisions
of paragraph (1). However, trade secrets may not be discl osed
by the Attorney General w thout the approval of the

Commonweal th Court, after notice to the person who produced

the information.

(3) The Attorney General may use information, including
docunents, obtained under this section in an action brought
under this act or Federal antitrust statutes; however,
information relating to trade secrets may not be nade public
in an action w thout the approval of the court in which the
action is pending, after notice to the person who produced
the information.

(d) Limtation on use.--No crimnal prosecution under this
act may be brought by the Attorney Ceneral based principally
upon information or docunents obtained in a civil investigation
under this section.

(e) Wongful disclosure of information.--Any person who
publ i shes or communi cates any procedure, testinony or materi al
produced, which is required to be kept confidential pursuant to
this section, commts a m sdenmeanor of the third degree.
Section 10. Consistency with Federal |aw.

The provisions of this act which parallel provisions of
Federal antitrust statutes shall be construed consistently with
perti nent Federal statutes and Federal judicial opinions

interpreting those Federal statutes.
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1 Section 11. Effective date.
2 This act shall take effect July 1, 1994.
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